The Story of the Statue of Liberty at Franklin Elementary

The Statue of Liberty that has stood prominently in front of Franklin School since 1951 is a replica of the original Statue of Liberty in New York Harbor. The replica is $\frac{1}{19}$ the size of the 151-foot statue in New York Harbor. The sheet copper used for the statue on the campus of Franklin School is made of sheet copper that is $\frac{3}{32}$ of an inch thick. It is made of the same material and equal thickness as the Statue of Liberty in New York. The Franklin statue is 8 1/2 feet tall without the base. It weighs 290 pounds. The statue cost $350, plus $9 for freight.

The star-shaped base, (which is also the shape of the foundation on the New York statue) came for $250 in addition to donated labor. The footing of the statue is 22 inches deep and rests on the bed of the old street. The cement and bricks were furnished at cost by Joe Oldham and the Badger Lumber Company. The brick pedestal is 3 feet 2 inches square at the base and 6 1/2 feet tall. The brick star is 15 feet across at its farthest points and 2 feet high. The architect for the star design was Leo Adams.

On Saturday, September 15, 1951, the Statue of Liberty was dedicated after a mile-long parade of 1,000 uniformed scouts and leaders. The Excelsior Springs and Liberty High School bands performed along the parade route and on the grounds of Franklin School. The statue was unveiled by H. Roe Bartle at the precise moment the flight of twelve F-51 navy airplanes from the Olathe base flew overhead.

It was dedicated by the Boy Scouts of Clay County as a pledge of "everlasting fidelity and loyalty to freedom". After fundraising efforts to restore the statue were completed, the statue was rededicated in front of Franklin School in the fall of 1992. The statue was again removed for restoration and rededicated on December 14, 2001, in front of Franklin School with Mayor Steve Hawkins giving a speech.